
Procurement Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 25 March 2020

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: The Boardroom, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 11 March 2020 

(Pages 1 - 6)

4  Matters arising 

5  Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public) 

5a Request to go out to Tender - Islington Mill (Pages 7 - 12)

5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Supply, Installation and 
Maintenance of Multi-Functional Printers and Print Centre Equipment 

(Pages 13 - 22)

5c Request for Approval - Contract Award - Arboricultural Services (Pages 23 - 30)

5d Request for Approval - Contract Award - Water System Risk 
Assessments and Water Hygiene Monitoring Services 

(Pages 31 - 36)

5e Request for Approval - Appointment of Contractor - Council New build 
Housing 

(Pages 37 - 44)

5f Request for Approval - Contract Award - Vehicle Replacement 
Programme 

(Pages 45 - 78)

6  Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public) 

Public Document Pack



7  Exclusion of the public 

8  Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public) 

9  Date and time of next meeting 

10:00am on Wednesday 8 April 2020 in the Boardroom, Salford City 
Council, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



1

Procurement Board
11 March 2020

Meeting commenced: 10:02 a.m.
Meeting ended:  11:15 a.m.

Present
Councillors Boshell and Hinds (in the chair)

In Attendance
Dominic Clarke Head of Citywide and Community Services
Sandra Derbyshire Principal Officer – Neighbourhoods and Communities
Christine Flisk Procurement Manager
Chris Hesketh Head of Financial Management
Mike Jolley Engineer
Steven Keigher Principal Surveyor
Janice Lowndes Assistant Director – People and Communities
Majid Maqbool Energy Manager
Jacquie Russell Assistant Director – Strategy and Change
Tony Thompstone Strategic Finance Manager
Jennifer Walsh Commissioning Manager
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the City Mayor Paul Dennett and 
Councillor Merry.

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3. Minutes of the Last Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 February 2020 were approved as a correct record.

4. Matters Arising

There were no matters arising.

5. Request for Approval – Contract Award – Renewal of Non-half Hourly (NHH) Electricity 
Supply

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to 
award the contract for the renewal offer for the supply of NHH electricity.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

It was confirmed that the recommendation was to accept a 100% green energy contract at a 
relatively small premium in order to show the council’s commitment and leadership in 
encouraging renewable sources and therefore combating climate change.

Whilst the wholesale price had reduced and was at its lowest level since 2016, the non-
commodity elements had increased year on year resulting in an overall increase in total 
contract renewal costs.

RESOLVED, THAT: the City Mayor be recommended to approve that a 48 months’ 100% 
green energy contract for the supply of non-half hourly electricity be awarded to Scottish and 
Southern Electric (SSE) at a cost of £671,201 per annum.

6. Request for Approval – Contract Extension – Strategic Development of the VCSE Sector

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Directors People and Place seeking 
approval to extend the contract for Strategic Development of the VCSE sector through 
engagement, support and influence and promoting volunteering in Salford.

Detail was provided on the review undertaken in 2013/14 regarding commissioning 
arrangements with Salford Community and Voluntary Sector (SCVS). The focus of the 
review was to maximise the effectiveness of Council funding in providing a range of VCSE 
services in Salford and to demonstrate that the arrangements with SCVS represented value 
for money and that SCVS was the most appropriate organisation to deliver the required 
services.

It was confirmed that SCVS continued to provide excellent value for money, overachieved on 
all Key Performance Indicators and outcomes set in the service specification, and leading 
and delivering in Social Value. By way of example, 144 organisations had been provided 
with financial, legal and payroll support.

The board noted that the Procurement team was advising that an options appraisal should 
be undertaken in the period of the 12 months extension to outline future options for 
retendering of these services. 

RESOLVED, THAT: the contract with Salford Community And Voluntary Sector (SCVS) for 
the strategic development of the VCSE sector through engagement, support and influence, 
and to promote volunteering, be extended for 12 months at an estimated average cost of 
£265,568.

7. Request for Approval – Contract Extension – Information and Advice Services

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking approval to 
extend the contract for information and advice services.

As commissioning lead, the Principal Officer – Neighbourhoods and Communities  confirmed 
that the Lead Member for Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing had approved budget 
provision on 19 March 2019 in order to extend the current contract for Information and 
Advice Services from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 and budget provision for the period 1 
April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

The board was reminded that the CAB provided advice and guidance on other areas in 
addition to welfare rights and debt advice. Officers were mindful that the City Mayor was 
keen to bring services in house wherever possible but confirmed that there were currently 

Page 2



3

insufficient resources in house to be able to do. Additionally there were some people who felt 
able to engage with a high street provider but would not feel the same with a council 
provider, especially given that the advice and guidance they sought may be in relation to 
issues that they had with the council.

RESOLVED, THAT: 

(1) the contract with Salford Citizens’ Advice Bureau for the provision of information and 
advice services be extended for 12 months at a cost of £565,726;

(2) commissioners work with the Procurement team to discuss options for future service 
provision in line with council policies.

8. Request for Approval to go out to Competition - Key Cities Public Relations Contract

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director for Service Reform seeking 
approval to go out to competition for the Key Cities Public Relations support contract.

It was confirmed that the proposed contract would be funded from the membership 
contributions from local authority members of the Key Cities Network which was currently 
chaired by the Deputy City Mayor.

It was important that the successful tenderer had access to lobby and influence UK 
government on behalf of the Key Cities network.

RESOLVED, THAT: authority be granted for the Key Cities Public Relations support to be 
procured in accordance with the Council’s contract procedure rules through an open tender.

9. Request for Approval – Contract Award – Electronic Payment Services via PayPoint and 
Post Office Counters Ltd (POCL)

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director for Service Reform seeking 
approval to award the contract for Electronic Payment Services via PayPoint and Post Office 
Counters Ltd (POCL).

Allpay allowed customers to pay council bills at the Post Office and at Paypoint outlets 
across the city, giving bill payers greater flexibility in where and when they paid their bills. 

RESOLVED, THAT: a 48 months’ contract for electronic payment services via PayPoint and 
Post Office Counters Ltd (POCL) be awarded to Allpay Ltd at a cost of £79,816.87 per 
annum.

10. Request or Approval to go out to Tender – Salford Residents Funeral Service

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to go 
out to tender for the Salford Residents Funeral Service.

This service aimed to reduce funeral costs for bereaved families on low incomes and, to 
date, around 100 funeral services had been undertaken through this initiative. Feedback 
from families who had used the service had been very good.

RESOLVED, THAT: authority be granted for Salford Residents Funeral Service to be 
procured in accordance with the Council’s contract procedure rules through a tender 
process.

Page 3



4

11. Request for Approval – Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – Contract Award – 
Pendleton Roundabout Road Traffic Accident (RTA) Repair Scheme

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking an exception to 
Contractual Standing Orders, for reasons of best value and urgency, to allow a contract to 
be awarded for the Pendleton roundabout road traffic accident repair scheme.

It was confirmed that discussions were ongoing with the third party insurers about cost 
recovery.

RESOLVED, THAT: 

(1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be granted for reasons of best value to 
the Council and the execution of the works is required so urgently as not to permit 
compliance with the requirements of competition and,

(2) A nine weeks’ contract be awarded to Eurovia Contracting to deliver the civil and 
highway engineering repairs to Pendleton roundabout, the full works’ costs being as 
follows:

Eurovia Contracting £191,330.28
SCC Structure and Bridges Design Fees £10,140.50
SCC Structure and Bridges Supervision fees £9,757.84
Principal Designer £825.00

12. Request for Approval – Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – Contract Award – 
Liberty House & The Foyer and Provision Expansion to Support the No Wrong Door 
Model

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking approval for an 
exception to contractual standing orders for reasons of best value to allow an extension of 
current contracts with Liberty House and The Foyer. 

It was confirmed that the request to extend the current contract for six months to April 2021 
would allow a full review of 16+ provision as the contract end dates would then align with 
those of Foundations ltd who delivered Lane End and Claremont Road provision for care 
leavers. The six months’ extension would also allow time for Route 29 to embed and its 
impact to become clear.

RESOLVED, THAT:

(1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be granted for reasons of best value to 
the Council,

(2) A six months’ extension be granted to the contract with Adullam Homes Housing 
Association for the provision of a supported accommodation service  at Liberty 
House for young homeless/leaving care people aged between 16 and 24, at a cost of 
£63,129.50 and

(3) A six months’ extension be granted to the contract with Places for People Living Plus 
for the Foyer, at a cost of £54,659,

(4) Approval be granted to block book four additional beds at the Foyer for ROUTE 29 
use at a cost of £69,413.76, and

(5) Approval be granted to fund one additional staff member to work at the Foyer linked 
specifically to Route 29 should the pilot period of a Route 29 outreach worker 
attached to the Foyer not be successful, at a cost of £17,000.

Page 4



5

13. Request to go out to Competition – Appointment of a Managing Agent for 100 
Embankment, Salford

It was clarified that the estimated annual fee payable to the managing agent for all services 
was in the range of £60,000 to £80,000. This fee would be recoverable from the tenants 
under the building service charge so there would be no financial impact on the Council from 
the contract if the building proceeded to be fully let.

RESOLVED, THAT: authority be granted for a managing agent for 100 Embankment, 
Salford to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders 
through an open tender.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 Proc-brd-report-going out to tender-Islington Mill-25/03/20

Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

TO

Procurement Board

ON

25th March 2020

TITLE: Approval to go out to competition for Islington Mill

RECOMMENDATION:

That Procurement Board grant authority to go out to tender for the following 
packages of work in connection with the Islington Mill project: -

i) Multi-disciplinary consultancy team (open tender)
ii) Building contractor (open tender)
iii) Furniture supply (open tender)

to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules through 
an open tender

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to request approval to go out to competition for the 
delivery of the abovementioned project/scheme/service or purchase of goods.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None

KEY DECISION: No 

DETAILS: 

The project

The Islington Mill Project comprises two phases of work: -

Page 7

Agenda Item 5a



 Proc-brd-report-going out to tender-Islington Mill-25/03/20

Phase 1 – Islington Mill (refurbishment)
Phase 2 – New Islington Mill (repair, refurbishment and fit out)

Work to be procured

The project will require the procurement of three packages of work: -

Package 1 – Appointment of a multi-disciplinary design team (Estimated value £470k) 

This will include, project manager, cost consultancy, architect, structural engineer, 
heritage consultant, BREEAM consultant, fire safety advisor, mechanical and 
electrical engineer.

In the case of Islington Mill, this will require the consultancy team to be involved in the 
procurement of the building works (RIBA stage 4/5) and administration and 
supervision of the building contract through to completion (RIBA stages 5 – 7).

New Islington Mill is at an earlier design stage in the RIBA Plan of Work (stage 3). 
Therefore, the consultancy team will be required to progress the project through RIBA 
stage 4 (technical design) to RIBA stage 7 (in use).

Package 2 – Procurement of a building contractor (Estimated value £4.62 million)

To deliver the project on site, which will include demolitions, repairs, building works, 
finishes, fitting’s, electrical and mechanical installations.

Package 3 – Procurement of a furniture supply company (Estimated value £120k)

Loose furniture such as tables, desks and chairs.

Governance

IMAC will be the contracting organisation for the whole project with a grant funding 
agreement in place between the Council and IMAC.

As part of the funding arrangements for the project, Islington Mill Arts Club will be 
required, under the Council’s guidance and supervision, to follow public sector 
procurement regulations, which is in line with ERDF requirements and undertake open 
competitive processes for all three packages of work.

As the total value of the contract award for package 1 is above & package 2, close to 
the EU threshold, the call for competition will be published/advertised in OJEU. 

Page 8



 Proc-brd-report-going out to tender-Islington Mill-25/03/20

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
The Great Eight

Education and Skills
Economic Development
Social Value

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

No assessment has been undertaken at this stage.  

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
Medium: 

The key reason for commencing the tender process now (ahead of a decision on the 
ERDF funding bid, expected June 2020) is that one element of match funding for the 
project (£858,000 from Arts Council England) is at risk, unless tangible progress is 
demonstrated on moving the project forward.

Discussions with Arts Council England and their advisors has indicated that 
progressing the OJEU procurement process ahead of the ERDF decision would 
enable the project to progress as quickly possible should funding be confirmed.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

- Salford City Council Grant (secured)
- Arts Council England Grant (secured)
- IMAC fundraising (secured)
- Heritage Lottery Fund (secured)
- ERDF Capital Grant (decision expected June 2020)
- Public Sector Match to ERDF (City Council to underwrite, finance and work to 

secure additional funding to offset)

See financial comments below. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton

Legal Services has attended two meetings with the Contact Officer and Procurement 
to discuss this Project. Legal Services is aware of the funding, procurement and 
contract structure as detailed above. The Council has previously undertaken projects 
with a similar grant funding and contract structure such as New Bailey Gateway. 

Page 9



 Proc-brd-report-going out to tender-Islington Mill-25/03/20

Legal shall draft and advise on the grant funding agreement between the Council and 
Islington Mill Arts Club (IMAC) referred to in the report. It will be important to ensure 
that this grant funding agreement flows down any requirements placed upon the 
Council by ERDF onto IMAC. 

IMAC will be the organisation which tenders for, and enters into the works contracts 
referred to. Accordingly the Council will not be the contracting authority for the 
purposes of the procurement regulations in this scenario, but will be providing on-going 
advice, assistance, and support to IMAC, to ensure that IMAC complies with relevant 
legislation and the Council’s own procedures, which will be obligations under the grant 
funding agreement with and required by ERDF. 
Legal services will remain engaged with the relevant officers and procurement 
throughout this process, and advise and assist where requested, including drafting 
and reviewing documentation.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Natalie Birchall Finance Officer L2
Ext 2316 

The council submitted the ERDF funding bid for the Islington Mill project on 31st 
January 2020. 

Costs associated with dealing with the funding bid (up to the decision expected in June 
2020) are funded from the approved 2020/21 capital programmes.

The proposal to progress the OJEU tender process ahead of a decision on ERDF 
funding, at this stage is to reduce the risk and secure the Arts Council match of £858k.

The council will not be committing to accept any tender until all the appropriate 
funding is secured/in place.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Christine Flisk ext 6245

As the funding will be passed to IMAC through the formulation of a grant funding 
agreement the council will not act as the contracting authority for the 3 packages 
identified.  As outlined within the report the IMAC will have to follow public sector 
procurement regulations to ensure compliance with the funding organisations.  The 
procurement team will work closely with IMAC to ensure compliance with the Public 
Procurement regulations required by ERDF.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: 

Not applicable

Page 10



 Proc-brd-report-going out to tender-Islington Mill-25/03/20

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: 
Consulted: Mike Hemingway, Principal Officer Climate Change ext 3209

A requirement of ERDF is that the project meets BREEAM ‘very good’. The Councils 
aspiration is to aim for ‘excellent’ on this project.  However, it should be noted that 
this can often prove difficult on historic buildings.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

Not applicable

CONTACT OFFICER: 
TELEPHONE NUMBER: Perry Twigg TEL NO: Ext 6053

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Ordsall 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Sample B – award of contract 

Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Service Reform

TO

Procurement Board

ON

25th March 2020

 
TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for the Supply, Installation and Maintenance 
of Multi-Functional Printers and Print Centre Equipment

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board approve the award of a 5year contract for the supply, 
installation and maintenance of Multi-Functional Printers and Print Centre Equipment 
across the Council to Ricoh Uk Limited:

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of 

Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project

Supply, Installation and Maintenance of Multi-Functional 
Printers and Print Centre Equipment

Name of Successful 
Contractor Ricoh UK Limited

Supplier Registration 
Number

(to be supplied by Corporate 
Procurement)

01271033

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate 

Procurement)
Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate 

Procurement)
Non-SME

Contract Value £180,000 Per Annum (estimated average)
Contract Duration 60 months

Contract Start Date 01/09/2020

Page 13

Agenda Item 5b



Sample B – award of contract 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 
contract.

Key outcomes achieved by this Tender 
 Significant cost savings
 Equipment improvements
 Software licencing compliance
 Enhanced reporting solutions

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Report to Procurement Board from the Director of Corporate Services requesting 
approval to procure a new contract for digital print equipment dated 12th June 2019.

KEY DECISION:  

Yes

DETAILS: 

1. Background

Contract End Date 31/08/2025
Optional Extension Period 1 N/A
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A

Who will approve each 
Extension Period? Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & 
number) Peter cowling 0161 779 4996

Lead Service Group Service Reform & Development

How the contract was 
procured?

(to be supplied by 
procurement)

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)

Framework Details (where 
applicable)

(procurement body, 
framework reference & title, 

start/ end date

Crown Commercial Service (CCS) RM3781 Lot 2 
Multifunctional Devices, Managed print and content 

services and records management
Framework Start Date: 26.10.16
Framework End Date: 25.10.20

https://www.crowncommercial.gov.uk/agreements/rm3781
Funding Source Revenue Budget

Page 14

https://www.crowncommercial.gov.uk/agreements/rm3781


Sample B – award of contract 

 In Jun 2019, Procurement Board granted approval for officers to undertake a 
procurement exercise for Multi-Functional Printers (MFP’s) and Print Centre 
Equipment using the Crown Commercial Framework RM3781 for Multi-
Functional Printers and Reprographics Devices.

 Our current contract with Ricoh UK Limited is both due to expire on 31st 
August 2020 and there are no further opportunities to extend the contract.

 Furthermore, with particular reference to the MFP fleet, where most of the 
current machines are ≥ 4 years old, we have recently seen a increased 
frequency of breakdowns and faults. The incumbent supplier has instructed 
the Council that beyond the expiry date of the contract, they will not be in a 
position to continue servicing the fleet due to the limited availability of spare 
parts and the increasing costs of maintaining the fleet, so there is no 
opportunity to negotiate any extension past the end of August. 

 Additionally, as a result of the significant organisational changes that have 
taken place since these contracts were first formed (in terms of staff numbers, 
restructures and building closures) and due to the future organisational 
changes that lay ahead of the Council (e.g. CCG, Mywork, Urban Vision), the 
previous contracts are no longer reflective of the Council’s printing needs, 
therefore it was necessary to recalibrate our requirements and ensure they 
more accurately reflect current and future demand.

2. The Procurement Process

 A Project Group consisting of officers from Corporate Procurement, Corporate 
Administration, the Print Centre and ICT was initially established to determine 
and shape the Council’s future requirements. These requirements were then 
translated into a tender specification for suppliers to build proposals around. A 
series of stakeholder engagement initiatives were undertaken at the project 
formation stage to ensure the tender requirements met the varied needs of 
users across the organisation. The Project Group also evaluated the bids 
received from the framework suppliers. 

 Due to the fact a framework was utilised for this exercise, there was a limited 
degree of flexibility permitted around the price/ quality weighting splits used. A 
price / quality weighting of 50%/50% was agreed by the Project Group. The 
50% weighting given to pricing was split equally between the leasing costs 
and the costs of printing (known as service costs as this element accounts for 
maintenance and servicing as well) because we know from our historic 
information, these two cost elements are roughly the same in value terms. 
The Project Group agreed that the weightings used struck a balance between 
the need to realise economic efficiencies from the exercise as well the need to 
work with a supplier with a strong track record of delivering reliable and high 
quality services and products to its clients in addition to realising new 
technology enhancements previously not explored. 

Page 15



Sample B – award of contract 

 Using Lot 2 (Multifunctional Devices, Managed Print and Content Services 
and Records and information management) of the CCS’s framework, a mini-
competition was undertaken. All 9 framework suppliers were invited to 
compete. Due to the nature of our requirements (particularly around the 
production needs of the Print Centre Equipment), 2 bidders opted out of the 
mini-competition process as they were unable to meet the minimum criteria 
detailed in the specification. Bids were received Ricoh only, the remaining 
suppliers failed to submit

 In order to make a full consideration of the opportunities available to the 
Council under a new contract, the tender required bidders to submit a range 
of prices over a range of contract durations which were as follows:-

- An initial 3 (THREE) year contract term with 2 (TWO) optional extension 
periods of up to 12 (TWELVE) months based on satisfactory performance 
and available funding

- An initial 4 (FOUR) year contract term with 1 (ONE) optional extension 
period of up to 12 (TWELVE) months based on satisfactory performance 
and available funding

- A 5 (FIVE) year fixed term contract 

 Suppliers were asked to provide a like for like replacement model in addition 
to innovation options relating to equipment efficiencies

 A detailed cost comparison was undertaken to compare Ricoh’s offering for 
varying contract lengths against the existing solution and comparison of 
innovation costs vs the proposed solution

 In response to these differing contract durations, Ricoh offered the greatest 
economic incentives against the longer-term contract options and with an 
innovation model that will use (where possible) unified model ranges for 
greater flexibility and long term management

 The results of the evaluation are shown in the Fig. 1 below:-

3 Year Contract 4 Year Contract 5 Year Contract

Current 
Cost

New 
contract 

cost
Savings Current 

Cost

New 
contract 

cost
Savings Current 

Cost

New 
contract 

cost
Savings

Rental (equip 
only)

 
£290,399.76 

 
£229,056.36  £61,343.40 

 
£387,199.68 

 
£276,172.80 

 
£111,026.88 

 
£483,999.60 

 
£310,353.80 

 
£173,645.80 

Mono Costs  £ 77,843.38  £54,225.55 £23,617.83 
 
£103,791.17 £72,300.73  £31,490.43 £129,738.96  £90,375.92  £39,363.04 

Colour Costs £93,284.07  £75,842.95 £17,441.13 £124,378.76 £101,123.93 £ 23,254.84 £155,473.46 £126,404.91 £ 29,068.55 
Equitrack/Kofax 
Software £32,640.00 £ 68,163.00 -£35,523.00 £40,224.00 £87,339.00 -£47,115.00 £50,280.00 £107,542.00 -£57,262.00 
Planet Press 
Renewal £29,899.08 £29,899.08  £                    £41,028.00 £41,028.00 

£                     
- £58,805.60 £58,805.60 

 £                     
-   

Total £524,066.29 £457,186.94 £66,879.35 £696,621.61 £577,964.46 £118,657.15 £878,297.61 £693,482.23 £184,815.39 
               

 Based on current demand forecasts, the estimated overall cost for the initial 5 
year term is £693,482.23 this is split between service rentals £310,353.80, 

Page 16

http://www.thecpc.ac.uk/suppliers/categories/lot.php?categoryID=7&frameworkID=123&lotID=184


Sample B – award of contract 

usage costs £216,780.83  (please note the usage cost element of these costs 
are based on historic print volumes, actual volumes, and therefore costs may 
vary) and software costs at £166,347.60. Furthermore, if during the period 
between contract award and contract commencement, the device 
requirements change, this figure will change). This cost estimate represents a 
potential 21.043% saving against the existing contracts. The saving has been 
generated in two ways, through the sourcing of more competitive lease and 
service charges and through a reduction in the number of machines types.
 

 Within the terms of the framework the authority can reduce the number of 
devices within the term of the contract by 10% without penalty.

 In preparation for this procurement exercise, officers carried out analysis of 
historic printing activity (for the period Jan18 – Dec18) by users across the 
organisation. Based on this analysis, it is evident that further efficiencies can 
be achieved through a more considered approach to printing i.e. greater use 
of economical print formats and greater use of the Print Centre. In order to 
support this behavioural shift, suppliers were asked to provide solutions to 
help achieve these outcomes. One of the primary methods of achieving a 
reduction in print volume proposed by suppliers was to implement “rules-
based printing” which imposes pre-determined conditions on potential print 
activity, for example: -

- Print jobs consisting of ≥50 pages would automatically be rerouted to the 
Print Centre to take advantage of lower copy costs and free up MFP’s for 
more day-to-day printing activity

Such rules will need careful consideration before being implemented so as not 
to put any operations at risk (e.g. in out stationed offices where users may not 
have direct access to the Print Centre) additional controls can be inserted to 
allow specific users to bypass these controls. Officers will work closely with 
the successful supplier to ensure any rules are appropriate and 
communicated effectively to all affected users, Functional controls can be 
assigned to work in conjunction with the authorities MYwork strategy.

There are options to include additional software solutions throughout this 
contract to enable  job ticketing submission tools to allow additional redirection 
to the print centre and support printed material procurement channels, these 
will be at additional cost (approx. £5k per annum) and will require evaluation 
of potential savings opportunities prior to implementation. It is advised to 
explore these options in year two following trials of rules-based printing 
solutions.

Service Improvements

 As part of the tender process suppliers we asked to provide options for 
innovation (both equipment & Software solutions) Ricoh’s proposals included 
- Lease renewals of print centre Planet Press licencing
- Rules based printing options (to support enforced printing rules)
- Standardised equipment models to enable MYwork

Page 17



Sample B – award of contract 

- RDIF card reader login functionality 
- Devices will have 10” tablet screens that can be used to display corporate 

messages or campaigns 

3. Social Value 

 As part of the quality questionnaire for this procurement process, suppliers 
were required to provide proposals around how their organisations would 
deliver social value to Salford City Council and the community it serves. 

 Whilst the potential for this contract to deliver social value is limited given that 
this is largely a procurement for hardware, the successful supplier provided a 
range of different initiatives it is currently managing including: - 

- Pastoral support for young people working within the organisation
- Use of assessment days rather than a traditional approach of CV and 

competency-based interviews to ensure those with limited work 
experience and skills are not unduly disadvantaged in the recruitment 
process. More than 50 young people have been recruited in the last 3 
years using this method

- Silver Patron of the Prince’s Trust, one of the largest youth charities 
including support for work experience placements and CV/Interview 
skills workshops.

- Through the previous contractual arrangement for Print Centre 
equipment, the successful supplier funded and planted trees in Clifton 
Country Park in conjunction with local park rangers and students. 
Under a new contractual arrangement, the successful supplier would 
continue to support environmental initiatives as the opportunities arise. 

 The Contract Manager will work with the Skills and Work Team to monitor the 
delivery of these outcomes.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

N/A

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Medium/High
If the Council chose not to award a contract following this procurement exercise, the 
Council will be at risk of not having an MFP fleet beyond 31st August 2020 due to the 
inability of the incumbent provider to continue to service the equipment past this date 
and there are no further opportunities to extend the contract. This would ultimately 
impact on the ability of certain functions to deliver their services who have a reliance 
on printed materials.  

Page 18



Sample B – award of contract 

An emerging risk to the Council, is the uncertainty around the contractual aspirations 
of newly formed entities created as a result of the current strategic reorganisations 
(e.g. Aspire mutual and the ICO). Whilst the recommended supplier has provided 
confirmation that should our requirements change post-contract award and pre-
contract commencement (1st September 2015), there will be no effect on tendered 
prices, we will still need to ensure there is sufficient clarity around the future 
intentions of these newly formed bodies before the contract commences to ensure 
the Council is not burdened with unnecessary liabilities against machines that aren’t 
required. 

.

SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Revenue Budget

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s stipulate that 
where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable 
reason not to do so.

The proposed award of the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in 
accordance with the process set out in the OJEU compliant Crown Commercial 
Services framework for Multifunctional Devices, Managed Print and Content Services 
and Records and Information Management, which itself was procured in accordance 
with CSO’s, which will help to ensure that the risk of any challenge to the award of 
contract to Ricoh is minimal and is extremely unlikely to be successful. 

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will 
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of 
ways such as mini-competition as in this instance, or direct allocation, depending on 
the circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s. 

The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework 
agreement to ensure the procurement process is compliant and it has been evaluated 
in accordance with published criteria resulting in the proposed award of the contract 
to Ricoh. The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the 
requirements of CSO’s and PCR.

Page 19



Sample B – award of contract 

Legal Services will assist with preparing any contractual documentation upon receipt 
of instructions to ensure the Council’s position and interest are protected.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  The Finance Team 

As identified within the main body of this report, the forecasted impact of implementing 
the new print contract represents a saving to the council.  However, careful monitoring 
of usage is required to ensure that the costs remain within the current budget envelope 
and that there is still a drive to further reduce costs through lowering the volume of 
printing across the council.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Emma Heyes, Category Manager, 
x6243

Contractual Standing Orders states that where there is a suitable framework, this 
must be used unless there is an auditable reason not to do so.  

Crown Commercial Services framework RM3781 for Multifunctional Devices, 
Managed Print and Content Services and Records and Information Management, 
which commenced on 26/10/2016, expiring on 25/10/2020, is a fully OJEU compliant 
framework.

A mini-competition exercise was run through the Chest with all 9 suppliers invited to 
bid in Lot 2: Multifunctional Devices and Print Management Software and Services.  
The Council received one bid on time from Ricoh UK Limited.

The procurement process undertaken is complaint with the requirements of CSOs. 

The CCS Framework Call-Off documents will require completion upon award of 
contract.

HR IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Supplied by: Steve Hulme Strategic HR & OD 
Manager X8631

There are no direct implications to workforce numbers or structures as a result of the 
proposed changes. The new equipment will support the ongoing roll out of Mywork. 
The introduction of the new equipment and new rules-based printing will need to 
consider any potential training and orientation requirements to ensure a seamless 
transition. 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Michael Hemmingway Principal 
officer Climate Change X 3209

Ricoh are an ISO14001 accredited supplier who has several programmes relating to 
the reduction and reuse of plastic waste and carbon reduction policies.

Page 20



Sample B – award of contract 

The latest energy efficient products will be used, all of which meet Energy Star 
performance requirements. All toners use natural pigment colours from plant-derived 
sources for toners. 

Toner bottles and cartridges are returned under a recycling service from Ricoh, All 
toner supplied is non hazardous waste compliant with EWC code 08 03 18 and if 
necessary can be disposed of as general waste, To comply with waste regulations, 
licences and waste transfer notes can also be provided

All returned items will be returned to Ricoh’s dedicated in-house UK Green Centre 
(UKGC), which is located within their national Supply Chain distribution centre in 
Daventry.  

Ricoh will recycle all types of consumables, segregating these according to material 
type (e.g.  LDPE, HDPE, PS, ABS, PE, etc.) ensuring near-virgin grade materials 
can be used again for other plastic products.  Where possible, the toner cartridges 
are used in the production of new cartridges, Toner cartridges and service parts are 
disassembled and all components - including shipping and packing materials - are 
sorted for reuse, material recovery and energy recovery.

Ricoh’s manufacturing facility operates Zero Waste To Landfill, and specialise in the 
disassembly and material segregation of various types of waste including Waste 
Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE), printers, copiers, MFDs and all 
associated used consumables.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

List other parts of the organisation consulted with if applicable. Also identify if this is a 
joint report and if it is, also reflect this in the Heading. 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 
Specify the ward(s) affected, if all wards, state this fact.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE

TO PROCUREMENT BOARD

ON Wednesday 25th March 2020

TITLE:  Arboricultural Services

RECOMMENDATIONS: An award of Contract for the supply of Arboricultural 
Services as detailed in the table below: -

Detail required Answers

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project Arboricultural Services

Name of Successful Contractor GM Tree Station
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate 
Procurement)

31552R (regulated by The FCA not Companies 
House)

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate 

Procurement)
Other

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate 

Procurement)
SME

Contract Value £130,000 Per Annum (estimated average)
Contract Duration 22 months

Contract Start Date 01/06/2020
Contract End Date 31/03/2022

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months
Optional Extension Period 2 12 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number) Annie Surtees

Page 23

Agenda Item 5c



2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  the purpose of the report is to seek approval to award 
a contract for Arboricultural Services.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Approval was given to go out to the market and complete a tender exercise, report 
attached.

PB Arb Approval to 
go to tender Sept 19.doc

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS:

1.0 The Arboricultural Service contract has been in place since August 2004, with 
the existing contract being entered into in April 2016 and scheduled to expire on the 
31st March 2020, extended to 31st May 2020.

The contract relates to the provision of tree works within the City. Other options were 
explored as to using an existing framework within Greater Manchester or in-house 
service

1.1 The 10 Greater Manchester Authorities were asked about the delivery and 
budgets for their individual arboricultural services. From the 7 authorities who 
responded, 2 deliver an in house service the others outsource the service.  

Lead Service Group Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement) Open Procedure

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date

N/A

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below)
Revenue & Capital

Page 24



3

Rochdale has a framework agreement, but this was only available for Stockport and 
Trafford to utilise and no other Authority permission to use. This therefore was ruled 
out due to Salford City Council not being named within the framework and would be a 
non-compliant route. 

1.2 Options for Salford to set up an in-house service were considered. This would 
require set up investment and establishment of a new 3 person arboricultural team. 
The estimated set up costs are £60,000 which covers the purchase of a suitable 
vehicle and chipper, equipment including chainsaws, climbing ropes and harnesses 
and personal protective equipment. The annual revenue costs would be 
approximately £90,000. Salford currently has a revenue budget of £50,000 compared 
to other authorities with budgets ranging from £132,000 to £340,000. It was therefore 
considered uneconomic to deliver the service in-house based on current revenue 
funding.

1.3 In accordance with the approval in September 2019 and in order to comply 
with the EU regulations and Contractual Standing Orders it was agreed that the 
contract be re – tendered. 

This report provides the detail of the tendering process and recommends the 
appointment of a provider. 

2.0        The Procurement Process

2.1        The opportunity was advertised through the European Journal (OJEU) and the 
north-west portal (the chest) as an open procedure process.

There were as 42 expressions of interest and we received 6 completed tenders.

The contract award criteria were based on 40% quality which covered contract specific 
questions and 60% on price.

2.2        Tender Results and Evaluation

The evaluation panel consisted of the Environmental Co-Ordinator (Arboriculture), and 
a Procurement Category Manager from the procurement team.

Summary of the evaluation:-

Name of Bidder % Price 
score

Max 60%

% Quality 
score

Max 40%

%Overall 
Score
100%

Provider A 40.00% 34.09% 74.09%

GM Tree Station 40.00% 60.00% 100.00%

Page 25



4

2.3 The budget available for this project is £130,000 of revenue and capital funding 
per annum for a two year period commencing on 1st June 2020 to 31st March 2022 with 
an option to extend for a further two years on an annual basis. Based on the last twelve 
months activity it should be noted that there is a budget pressure of an additional 
£57,450. This is an approximate figure as volume of work varies year on year and 
depends on the type of works required.

2.4 Following the evaluation process the tender submitted by GM Tree Station, was 
deemed to be the most economically advantageous tender.

3.0   Social Value

This statement provides context to Tree Station’s social value offer to Salford City 
Council, it describes initiatives in progress and how they will work with Salford 
professionals and residents to deliver their social value commitments. They have 
stated:-
“As a Society for the Benefit of the Community, delivering social value is at the heart 
of the business. As a “not for profit” social enterprise, community owned with over 
200 members, membership is open to all with our £1 Community Share Scheme.” 
 
By reducing carbon use and protecting the environment, their business model is 
dedicated to environmental sustainability; the responsible management of trees and 
park/woodland assets and the full exploitation of all necessary tree work arisings to 
achieve carbon emission reductions and improve the environment, this will apply to 
all the work they will do for Salford. They process all arisings into sustainably sourced 
firewood, timber, biomass wood fuel or landscaping/mulching woodchip. Their wood 
chip powered drying kiln for timber and firewood, ensures products have a very low 
embedded carbon value. They operate in line with their published Community Benefit 
and the Environmental Policy.    Increasing employability and employment Fair 
treatment of their staff is one of their core policies and operate to a documented 
Equal Opportunities Policy. An accredited Living Wage employer, employing over 30 
people on flexible hours to suit both employees and the company. They have no zero 
hour’s contracts and all their staff volunteer on local community and outreach 
projects. They will work in partnership with Salford City Council to establish 2 x 
Arboricultural Apprenticeship posts.  And they will notify Salford City Council of 
additional Job Vacancies within Tree Station, to ensure that whenever possible 
Salford residents are considered for any vacancies.  
 

Provider C 40.00% 52.96% 92.96%

Provider D 40.00% 41.54% 81.54%

Provider E 38.00% 38.41% 76.41%

Provider F 38.00% 54.48% 92.48%

Page 26



5

They presently work with social enterprises in Salford supporting people into 
employment/ providing other social benefits e.g. Social Adventures, Start Creative 
and RHS Bridgewater.  They recently started work with the Laudato Si Centre in 
Worsley and anticipate increasing involvement in Salford schools and community 
groups through this project.
 
They aim to source goods and materials from Salford businesses to support their 
work in the borough, they will develop relationships to support more Salford schools 
and community groups with time and resources.; and offer a minimum of 10 hours of 
their Community Officer’s time and 5 hours of assistance from their Directors with 
professional expertise within HR and Accountancy support/mentoring emerging 
social enterprises, subject to suitable opportunities.
 
Their dedicated Community Officer will promote their Community Benefit scheme, by 
promoting their business and ethics, delivering outreach, educational events and 
exploring potential community/collaborative opportunities for local environmental 
projects.  Community Benefit scheme, will also offer free/discounted timber resources 
and arboriculture expertise to schools/community groups working on the following 
projects: food growing, reducing social isolation, educational and increasing levels of 
physical activity for all. 
 
Upon commencement of the tender their Community Officer, will liaise directly with 
Salford City Council staff, to determine preferred methods of monitoring, to identify 
ways of increasing and recording of their committed social value.  

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Salford Tree Management Policy
Salford Climate Change Strategy

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: High
The city council as tree owner needs to ensure that its trees do not pose a danger to 
the public or property and are managed appropriately, it is therefore essential that an 
arboricultural contract is in place to maintain the city’s tree asset.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 as well as its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial 

Page 27



6

Regulations and the duties of Best and Social Value. In addition, the PCR require that 
contracting authorities treat candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and 
act in a transparent manner, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to 
legal challenge.

The OJEU (and Chest) advertised procurement procedure undertaken in this matter 
appears robust, and the appointment of the provider for this service follows an open 
tender process which is outlined within the body of the report, and which is compliant 
with the requirements of CSO’s and PCR. The open tender exercise undertaken as set 
out in the report will give some comfort to the Council in ensuring that value for money 
is being obtained and periodically tested, with open competition maintained.  

The award of the contract will commit the Council to an initial 22 month contract with 
the provider, with the option to extend for two further periods of twelve months each. 
Legal Services will advise and assist in the drafting of any contractual documentation 
upon receipt of instructions to ensure the interests of the Council are protected.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Paul Guest – Finance Officer
There is revenue budget provision within the Parks & Greenspace account to cover 
the operational cost of outsourcing the Arboricultural service. This revenue budget 
will also be supported by any funding received through the Capital programme 
allocations. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Deborah Derbyshire x 6244
The procurement process is outlined in the report above which complies with the 
Procurement Contract Regulations and the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Mike Hemmingway
The management of the cities tree asset is essential to ensure that we have a 
sustainable stock of well managed trees providing cool shade and comfort, slowing 
surface water runoff and maintaining biodiversity within the city when predicted 
temperatures rise in the future.

Where possible timber will be reused for other products, or left on site to rot naturally 
and provide habitat for wildlife or chipped on site and used as mulch

Page 28



7

The delivery of the arboricultural contract will be monitored and options to invest in 
equipment and machinery with reduced carbon footprint are being explored. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: n/a

CONTACT OFFICER: Annie Surtees TEL NO: x1153

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1 –Open to the public 
ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

25 March 2020

___________________________________________________________________

TITLE: Approval to award the contract for the acceptance of a tender under Council’s 
approved corporate capital maintenance programme for the renewal of the service 
contract for water system risk assessments and water hygiene monitoring services.
___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board:-  

Approve the award of the Contract for the works to hsl Compliance Limited as detailed 
in the table below:
 

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Water system risk assessments and water hygiene 

monitoring services.
Name of Successful Contractor hsl Compliance Limited
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
                                  02425951

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Award Price £51,696.90 per 
annum split 
between £11,793.30 
for schools and 
£39,903.60 for 
corporate 
properties.

Per Annum (estimated 
average)

Contract Value Including Fees and £155,090.70 over 3 Full Project

Page 31

Agenda Item 5d



approved QRA
(if applicable )

years

Contract Duration                                       3 years 
Contract Start Date 01/04/2020
Contract End Date 31/03/2023

Optional Extension Period 1                                       12 months
Optional Extension Period 2                                        12 months

Who will approve each Extension Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)
Contact Officer (Name & number) Gregory Durkin 0161 779 4942

                               Place DirectorateLead Service Group

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(Procurement Body, Framework Reference & 

Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

ESPO Framework 198 – Water System Risk 
Assessment and Water Hygiene Monitoring Services

SCC Corporate Revenue Budget and Third Party 
(Schools) Direct Payments

Funding Source 

___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 
contract.
___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)

Exempt under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 A of the Local Government Act 1972

  “Tender Submissions and Evaluation documents”
___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  No

___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS: 

1. Background

1.1 It is a statutory requirement on the Council under The Water Supply (Water 
Fittings) Regulations (which set legal requirements for the design, installation, 
operation and maintenance of plumbing systems, water fittings and water using 
appliances) that compliance with the regulations are adhered to. The 
regulations have a specific purpose to prevent misuse, waste, undue 

Page 32



consumption or erroneous measurement of water and most importantly, to 
prevent contamination of drinking water.

1.2  To comply with this the Council contracts with specialist companies to 
undertake water testing in corporate buildings in accordance with the periods 
and frequency required under the regulations. The current contract for this work 
is due to expire at the end of March 2020 and a new service contract needs 
commissioning. 

1.3 Tenders have been sought via a specialist framework to select a suitable 
contractor to undertake the inspection and testing of water supplies on behalf 
of the Council for an initial period of three years together with an option to 
extend this year on year for a further two twelve monthly periods. The contract 
will cover for the provision of a comprehensive water hygiene management 
service in accordance with regulations L8 and HSG 274.

1.4  The testing service would also be available for use by schools and educational 
establishments throughout the City of Salford. They would contract directly with 
the provider and a be directly responsible for the payment to the contactor for 
any testing and repairs. 

1.5 It will be a requirement under the contract that the successful contractor will 
provide the use of, and availability for use by the City of Salford, of an electronic 
web based portal where access to all reports, assessments and remedial 
requirements shall be readily available.  

2. The Procurement Process

2.1 The works for the project were tendered under the Council’s e-tendering portal 
in accordance with Contractual Standing Orders. Tenders were let by mini 
competition under the ESPO Framework 198 – Water System Risk Assessment 
and Water Hygiene Monitoring Services framework agreement.

2.2 Two companies submitted tenders and these have been evaluated in 
accordance with the selection criteria.

2.3 The evaluation scores are as follows:-

Bidder % Quality 
Score Max

50%

% Price 
Score 

Max 50%

%Overall 
Score

Max 100%

T1 40.00 50.00 90.00
T2 40.00      47.81 87.81

2.4 Following the evaluation process the company that scored highest in 
accordance with the award criteria was hsl Compliance Limited with a tender of 
£51,696.90 per annum (£155,090.70 over three years). Their submission 

Page 33



produced a score of 90.00% and represents the most economically 
advantageous offer to the Council.

3 Social Value 

3.1 hsl Compliance Limited stated the following in their submission:-

hsl provide numerous employment opportunities for local labour in the form of 
traineeships, apprenticeships and work experience placements. At present for 
Salford we employ engineers living local to the area. 

We always aim to support the local communities in which we work by 
providing employment opportunities. We do this through advertising in local 
newspapers and job centres. Another method we utilise is through publicising 
the opportunity in local residential newsletters. As part of our contract with 
another local authority, we have advertised in their local residential 
newspaper in order to recruit locally. The advert was featured in a publication 
which was circulated across the City in a bid to target the residents 
specifically.  We would look to take the same approach with Salford, if 
desired. 

All operatives are currently paid in excess of the current living wage. All pay is 
reviewed annually by the Board of Directors. We can see that this is very 
important to Salford Council, as being the first council in Greater Manchester 
to be accredited as a living wage employer. It is our policy to always source 
goods locally. As we already work within the contract area we currently have 
account set up with companies which we would continue to maintain if 
successful with this bid.

hsl are able to attend career workshops at local schools, these would be 
chaired by our HR manager who is experienced in providing CV advice, mock 
interviews and career guidance.

hsl are happy to discuss any ways in which we can help in fundraising 
activities such as your 10% better campaign and our marketing department 
would be available to provide assistance in the organisation of any events in 
connection with this. We would be happy to sponsor any events or to provide 
prizes for draws, both of which are initiatives we have adopted in the past to 
support our customers in their fundraising endeavours.

We would introduce FLS (programming software) to this contract which allows 
the business to operate more efficiently by means of reducing carbon 
emissions by reducing the amount of driving that engineers need to complete 
on a daily basis by up to 20%.

hsl will develop, monitor and report social value by means of:

 Inputs – resources that we can provide.
 Activities – what we can do or assist in.
 Outputs – the result of an activity that we contribute to.

Page 34



 Outcomes – the long term change that we can contribute to people, 
communities, or areas it affects.

 Expected Impact – the values it holds with the area or community.

3.2 All the above outputs will be managed and monitored through a project-    
specific social value plan. The log will provide a schedule and results 
summary showing how the social value initiatives are progressing and 
achievements made. 

The successful tenderer is a Greater Manchester based SME and there are 
opportunities for them to deliver social value outputs over the life of the contract.

__________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: All relating to Health and Social Care. The Sustainable 
Development and Carbon Reduction Programme are also accounted for.
___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High. It is statutory requirement that the Council comply 
with the water hygiene and testing regulations
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   The funding sources currently available for the corporate 
property water testing and monitoring are those to support the 2020/21 Corporate 
Revenue Budget and are detailed in reports previously submitted to Cabinet for 
approval. Third party users (schools etc) costs will be paid directly by themselves.
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323.

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of 
the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in accordance with the 
ESPO Framework 198 – Water System Risk Assessment and Water Hygiene 
Monitoring Services framework agreement. 

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will 
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of 
ways e.g. mini-competition, direct allocation etc. depending on the circumstances. A 
contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s. 

Page 35



The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework 
agreement for mini competition to ensure the procurement process is compliant. Two 
tenders were received from framework suppliers for this project, which have been 
evaluated on the most economically advantageous tender basis in line with 
procurement procedures resulting in the proposed award of the contract to hsl 
Compliance Limited. The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and 
compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and public procurement 
legislation.

Legal Services will assist with preparing any contractual documentation upon receipt 
of instructions to ensure the Council’s position and interest are protected. 
___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Gemma Singleton (Finance Officer - Level 
2).  Tel. 0161 793 2578

There is funding available under the approved Corporate Revenue Budget to meet the 
annual scheme costs for corporate property water hygiene testing and monitoring. 
(£39,903.60 per annum for three years totalling £119,710.80). Third party users 
(schools etc) costs estimated at £11,793.30 per annum will be paid directly by 
themselves.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Christine Flisk (Category Manager - Corporate 
Procurement Team) Tel. 0161 686 6245

The project has been competitively tendered under the Council’s Constitution 
governing contract procurement in accordance with a mini competition under the 
ESPO Framework 198 – Water System Risk Assessment and Water Hygiene 
Monitoring Services framework agreement. The winning tenderer has submitted the 
most economically advantageous offer which also supports the Council’s objectives of 
delivering social value on this contract.
___________________________________________________________________

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS.

The locality grouping of the service areas will help reduce travel distances and result 
in vehicle fuel efficiencies and hence a saving on carbon emissions.
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Les Woolhouse – Building Surveying Manager   TEL. NO. 0161 
779 4961
___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All Wards
___________________________________________________________________

Page 36



Sample B – award of contract 

Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

TO

Procurement Board

ON

25th March 2020

 
TITLE:   Approval to appoint Wates Construction Ltd under the Scape Framework to 
assist the Council in the delivery of its affordable new build housing proposals for the 
Longshaw Drive site in Little Hulton.

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board approve the appointment of Wates Construction Ltd under 
the Scape Framework to assist the Council in the delivery of its affordable new build 
housing proposals as detailed in the table below:

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
To deliver works to assist the Council in taking 
forward proposals for the delivery of Council 

new build affordable housing on the Longshaw 
Drive site in Little Hulton

Name of Successful Contractor Wates Construction Ltd
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 09177848

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Non-SME

Contract Value £235,000 
excl VAT Full Project

Contract Duration 2-4 Months
Contract Start Date 02/04/2020
Contract End Date 28/08/2020

Page 37

Agenda Item 5e



Sample B – award of contract 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the appointment of Wates 
Construction Ltd to undertake works to further develop the Council’s new build housing 
proposals for the Longshaw Drive site in Little Hulton. 

This work will inform the detailed business case being developed for the proposals 
and allow the City Mayor to make a decision as to whether to proceed with the new 
build proposals.

The appointment of Wates would be through the Scape construction framework and 
builds on earlier “at risk” work undertaken by Waites as part of their scape framework 
offer.

The extent of the appointment can be summarised as being to complete the Pre-
Construction Programme and Activity Schedule designed to take the project from its 
current feasibility stage to a fixed price and buildable design to help inform the wider 
business case being prepared for the Council’s consideration. 

Whether a decision is made to proceed with Wates as a contractor to build the 
proposed new units will be taken as part of the business case recommendations.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None

KEY DECISION:  

No 

Optional Extension Period 1 1 month
Optional Extension Period 2 0 months

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number) Peter Openshaw
Lead Service Group Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement) Scape Framework

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date

Scape Framework

Funding Source Capital Programme

Page 38



Sample B – award of contract 

DETAILS: 

1. Background

This report relates to work approved under the Councils Capital Programme and 
specifically flows from the virement of £500,000 of funding made by the Lead 
Member for Finance and Support services on the 19th March 2020 in relation to 
proposals to advance the delivery of business case supporting the development of 
new build housing by the City Council.

Wates introduced themselves to the City Council early in 2019. They provided details 
on their organisation and their presence on the Scape Framework that would allow the 
City Council to appoint them directly for certain projects if the Council were minded to 
do so.

Wates outlined the potential advantages of using the scape framework for a direct 
appointment in terms of procurement compliance, speed of appointment and the ability 
to work together from the inception of a project through to completion.

Wates further outlined that under the Scape Framework, and as part of their 
commitment and offer under the framework, they were willing to undertake feasibility 
work “at risk” on behalf of the Council to demonstrate their capabilities.

This offer co-incided with the Council working up proposals for the delivery of new 
build affordable Housing on a number of sites across the City including Longshaw 
Drive in Little Hulton.

Wates were therefore asked to look at the Longshaw Drive site and to produce a 
feasibility report for the Councils further consideration. The work was undertaken on a 
clear no- commitment basis in relation to the development of the site.

The feasibility report was concluded and presented in August 2019.

The proposals within the report were then subject to an independent review in order 
that the City Council could take a view on whether the proposals were worthy of further 
consideration. That report was undertaken by IP Consult in October/November 2019 
the conclusion and recommendations of which are detailed below:

Following the review of the Wates submission Identity Consult concluded that:
 

 Wates proposed cost plan is in line with current market conditions and 
represents Value for Money.

 Based on the above Identity Consult recommends that Salford City Council 
commence detailed negotiations with Wates. 

However, we note the following key actions to be progressed as soon as possible:

 Further review and firming up of the areas highlighted in section 6.6 and 6.7 
above(site abnormal and contingency allowances),

Page 39



Sample B – award of contract 

 A review of the specification assumptions within Wates offer against Salford 
City Councils specification requirements

 A review of the site conditions and abnormals;
 A detailed review of the design to ensure that it is being designed as 

efficiently as possible prior to planning submission;
 A detailed understanding of the proposed phasing and handovers to ensure 

that Salford City Council is comfortable with the level of risk;
 Progression of the detailed design and surveys to ensure Wates can firm up 

their costs,
 Once the above is complete, we would recommend a further review of Wates 

costs is undertaken to ensure best value is being achieved.

It is now proposed to appoint Wates to undertake the next phase of the work in order 
to address the recommendations as set out within the Identity Consult report. This 
will progress the detailed scheme and allow that information to be built into the 
business case being developed in relation to the proposals for the City Mayor’s 
consideration 

2. The Procurement Process

As detailed above the proposal is to appoint Wates to further develop the Councils 
new build housing proposals for the site under a commission through the Scape Major 
Framework and to enter into a Pre-Construction Services Delivery Agreement 
(PCSDA). 

The work to be undertaken is as follows: 

This is a Professional Services Agreement that follows the NEC Form of Contract 
(3rd Edition), whereby the general contractual content (Schedule 8) is aligned to 
Wates’ framework agreement with Scape, and the specific project content is 
contained in an agreed Employer Brief, Scope of Services, Pre-Construction 
Programme and Activity Schedule.
 
This Activity Schedule defines the activities to be undertaken by Wates during Pre-
Construction, and outlines the cost associated with each activity (Architect & 
Structural Engineer have already provided fixed quotes). This Activity Schedule can 
be broken down by RIBA stage or on a monthly basis, giving the Authority visibility of 
anticipated monthly expenditure profile, therefore clarifying the likely funding 
drawdown for accounting and payment purposes.
 
This complete PCSDA is designed to take the project from its current feasibility stage 
to a fixed price and buildable design. It is underpinned by the following key 
gateways:

 Scape Gateway 2- Signing of the PCSDA and confirmation of Project Brief
 Scape Gateway 3 - This is aligned with the end of RIBA 2 design, at which 

point Wates will competitively procure a number of key trade packages 
through the sub-contract supply chain. This gives SCC a higher level of cost 

Page 40



Sample B – award of contract 

certainty (85% cost certainty) than at feasibility stage, and is also the point at 
which Wates will submit a planning application on behalf of SCC.

 

The cost of undertaking the works detailed above amounts to £235,000 excl VAT.

On the completion of the stage 3 works the Council will be in a position to decide 
whether to proceed with Wates. If post business case Wates were subsequently 
appointed to proceed then the following stages would need to be commissioned and 
a discussion will be needed with Wates on the basis of contractor overhead and 
profit.

 Scape Gateway 4 -At the end of RIBA 3 design, Wates will be in a position to 
competitively tender the remaining packages to sub-contractors, thus 
achieving 100% cost certainty and giving SCC a fixed lump sum price (Scape 
Gateway 4)

 Construction Delivery Agreement- SCC will then have the option to sign up 
to a Construction Delivery Agreement, allowing for works to start on site, or 
choose to proceed down another route should they feel this would provide 
better value for money

3. Social Value 

Wates’s social value credentials have been discussed with them at length and were 
responded to specifically in their feasibility report. We are confident that if selected to 
work with the Council, to deliver the proposed new Housing units, Wates will have a 
compelling offer to make in terms of social value. This report however does not 
consider the issue of social value in detail as the proposed commission relates to the 
completion of preparatory and largely desk based analysis to inform the required 
development business case.

If a proposal is subsequently made to appoint Wates as the contractor partner for the 
Council on the Longshaw Drive site the issue of social value and what Wates propose 
to offer will be a fundamental part of any recommendation. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Delivery of Affordable Housing. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

This will be fully considered when developing proposals for the site and as part of the 
business case that will be presented for consideration.

Page 41



Sample B – award of contract 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
A delay in the proposed appointment will impact on the timescales to deliver the 
business case as detailed in the report and ultimately the delivery of the proposed 
housing units.
If the business case is not approved some of the monies expended will be 
irrecoverable.

SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
The cost of the works will be funded as part of the Council’s approved Capital 
Programme

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of 
the contract follows a call off exercise in accordance with the Scape Framework 
referred to in the body of the report. 

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of a contracting 
authority, as and when those services are required. If they are required then the 
Council will undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the 
providers who have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through 
any number of ways e.g. mini-competition, direct allocation etc. depending on the 
circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s. 

Assuming the Scape framework agreement permits direct allocation and the form of 
contracts referred to are as dictated by the framework, this is compliant with CSO’s 
and PCR. The only point I would mention is do we want to be more explicit when 
referring to the construction forms of contract i.e NEC 3 - Professional Services 
Contract. 

Legal would be happy to assist with preparing any subsequent contractual 
documentation upon receipt of instructions to ensure the Council’s position and 
interests are protected, and assume to be this to be an NEC 3 -Option A template, or 
as otherwise specified  by the framework agreement.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Chris Mee Strategic Finance Manager 
Ext 0434

The cost of these works of £235k will be met from within the approved 2020/21 capital 
programme for Place, specifically from within the £500k virement of funding to be 
approved by the Lead Member for Finance and Support services on the 19th March 

Page 42



Sample B – award of contract 

2020 in relation to proposals to advance the delivery of business case supporting the 
development of new build housing by the City Council.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Deborah Derbyshire x 6244

The Scape framework agreement has been established with the option to direct 
award with Wates as the only contractor through the Framework under Lot 4, for 
contract values of between £10mil to £50mil for design and build.  This is the 
preferred option at this stage to utilise the direct award facility to Wates and then the 
option to continue to complete the works and services provided as identified above.  
The framework has been advertised and awarded through an OJEU compliant 
procedure and this therefore conforms with the Procurement Contract Regulations 
and the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders. 

HR IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Not Applicable

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  
No comments at this stage

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None

CONTACT OFFICER: Peter Openshaw
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161-793-3050

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Little Hulton 
.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE

TO PROCUREMENT BOARD

ON 25th March 2020

TITLE:  The purchase of Electric Car/Derived Vans.

RECOMMENDATIONS: That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract 
for the purchase of Electric Car/Derived Vans as detailed in the table below: -

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Electric Car/Derived Vans

Name of Successful Contractor Pentagon
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 01862751

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Non-SME

Contract Value £239,489.22 Full Project

Contract Duration One off project
Contract Start Date 
Contract End Date 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A

Who will approve each Extension Period? Choose an item.
Contact Officer (Name & number) Terry Dixie 925 1046

Lead Service Group Place

Page 45

Agenda Item 5f



2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the purchase of electric car/derived 
vans.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Approval was agreed under the capital programme to replace the existing fleet car 
derived vans.  This provided the opportunity due to operational requirements to 
consider the change to engage with electric powder vehicles. 

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS:
1. Background,

As part of the capital fleet renewal programme, a number of vehicles have reached 
their operational life and require replacement.

The request for approval to procure the replacement vehicles is due to age and 
condition of the said vehicles.  

This provided the opportunity due to the operational requirements of these vehicles 
to engage in the procurement of electric powered vehicles. 

It was decided to engage with the YPO framework which is managed by GMP to 
facilitate this procurement. 

It was approved to procure the electric vehicles via the capital programme.

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework reference 

& title, start/ end date

YPO Supply of Electric Car/Vans 799 managed by 
GMP

Funding Source Capital Programme

Page 46



3

Place Directorate had submitted a capital funding bid covering this expenditure.

2. The Procurement Process

The tender process was undertaken by utilising the Yorkshire Purchasing   
Organisation Framework Agreement 766 managed by GMP, by means of a mini 
competition for the purchase of electric vehicles and vans.

There were XX selected companies for the electric car derived vans tonne invited to 
tender from the framework.  The weightings were split at 40% quality and 60% price.

Tender Results and Evaluation 

The evaluation panel consisted of the Head of Service for Transport, Technical 
Customer Services Officer from the Vehicle Management Services and a 
Procurement Category Manager from the procurement team.

However, there was only one bid received that could meet our requirements and 
conformed to our specification.  
The prices provided included discount by means of support grants from central 
government for initiative to move towards electric travel to achieve the expected 
reduction and improvements of carbon emissions as set out. 

The purchase total cost of each variant/type is included in the table below.  

No. Vehicles Service Area Total Cost
3 Pest Control 65,019.22
2 Dog Warden 43,500.00
1 Pest Control Dog Warden Combined 22,100.00
6 Various Car Derived Vans 108,870.00

The total number of vehicles is 12, at an overall total cost of £239,489.22.

3. Social Value 

Pentagon Group
Pentagon are registered with the Learning Skills Partnership (LSP), Pentagon are 
committed to training their staff to a high level in all their departments, they also offer 
training days to schools and colleges in the local area and encourage young people 
to engage in apprenticeships and work experience with the departments, this has led 
to Pentagon employing people that have engaged with Pentagon through this 
process.
Pentagon employs 1242 staff predominately in Derbyshire and also has business 
sites throughout the Midlands and the Manchester area.

Page 47



4

The Fleet department in West Hallam/Ilkeston (a known deprived area) employ a 
total of 70 local staff and also a further 35 casual labour staff mainly to facilitate the 
driving for delivery of vehicles.
Pentagon encourages their staff to engage with local communities close to their 
particular dealerships and support local children’s football teams, including the 
provision of football kit.
Pentagon organise coffee mornings in support of national charities, Cancer Research 
and MacMillan and locally support the Derbyshire Air Ambulance.
Pentagon creates traineeships for Derbyshire residents. The company began selling 
vehicles back in 1991.
Since those early days they are now one of the UK's top 30 dealers with 50 
Franchise outlet across East Midland and North, we have 6 operations in the Vicinity 
of Manchester and they employ 350 within these Dealerships, They run a very 
successful Apprenticeship programme and working closely with local schools, 6th 
form colleges, and are also heavily involved in Voluntary work within the community 
sponsoring various football teams and other sporting organisations along with getting 
involved in local shows and activities.
Pentagon pay as a minimum the living wage to all employees.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Complies with the Carbon reduction policy and EU 
Directives. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
There is a low assessment of risk given that the procurement has taken place via the 
YPO framework and a competitive exercise overseen by city council procurement 
team.  Delaying approval will have significant risk to the delivery of refuse services to
the residents of the City Council

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 
When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) which require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner. 
In addition, the Council is required to comply with the requirements of its own 
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which the award of a contract may be 
subject to legal challenge.  

The Council can comply with the requirements of the Regulations by carrying out its 
own procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant 

Page 48



5

procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods, 
works or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have 
complied with the Regulations to the extent that the central purchasing body has). 
The definition of ‘central purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes 
framework agreements for works, goods or services intended for one or more 
contracting authorities, here the YPO.

The proposed award of the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in 
accordance with the YPO framework agreement for the supply of electric cars / vans. 
The YPO arrangement is a fully compliant framework from a legislative perspective 
available for the Council (and other local authorities) to use.

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a 
procurement/evaluation process a number of providers who can meet the service 
requirements of the Council, as and when those services are required. If they are 
required then the Council can call off the goods/services from one or more of the 
providers who have been selected to be on the Framework and this may be through 
any number of ways (usually by way of mini-competition as here) depending on the 
circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s. The procurement procedures set out therefore appear robust and 
compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and the Regulations.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Capital Implications:

Supplied by: Alison Woods, Finance Officer, Tel.925 1135

Date: 10th March 2020

The purchase of the aforementioned vehicles will be funded from approved general 
unsupported borrowing, as part of the Place Capital Programme, for the 2019/20 
financial year.

Expenditure: F31023

Revenue Implications

Supplied by: Paul Guest, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 1136

Date: 10th March 2020

There is existing revenue funding provision to support the service and maintenance 
costs of these vehicles.

Page 49



6

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Deborah Derbyshire x 6244
The procurement process is included within the report above.  Utilising the YPO 
Framework is compliant with the Procurement Contracts Regulations and the Council 
Contractual Standing Orders

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Terry Dixie x 1046
 
The purchase of electric vehicles is moving towards the City Councils and the 
National objectives to achieve the reduction in emissions and working towards the  
carbon neutral agenda by 2038 and 2050.

We need to ensure that we maximise our zero emission fleet in line with our 
commitment in the GM Five Year Environment Plan to  “Phase out fossil fuelled 
vehicles and replace them with zero emission (tail pipe) alternatives.”  

All GM businesses are expected to switch their car/van fleet to Electric Vehicles.  

As a City Council we have committed in the plan to procure zero emission (tailpipe) 
cars where suitable and cost effective.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Terry Dixie TEL NO: 925 1046

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All

Page 50



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE

TO PROCUREMENT BOARD

ON 25th March 2020

TITLE:  The purchase of Ground Maintenance Vehicles, Street Cleansing Vehicles 
and Vehicle Management Service.

RECOMMENDATIONS: That Procurement Board approve the award of the 
Contract for the purchase of Grounds Maintenance Vehicles, Street Cleansing 
Vehicles and Vehicles Management Services as detailed in the table below: -

Detail required Answers

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project

Purchase of Grounds Maintenance Vehicles, Street 
Cleansing Vehicles and Vehicles Management 

Services
Name of Successful Contractor Ford
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 03323849

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Non-SME

Contract Value £976,000 Full Project
Contract Duration One off project

Contract Start Date 
Contract End Date 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A

Who will approve each Extension Period? Choose an item.
Contact Officer (Name & number) Terry Dixie 925 1046

Lead Service Group Place

Page 51



2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the purchase of Grounds 
Maintenance Vehicles and Street Cleansing vehicles.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Approval was agreed under the capital programme to replace refuse collection 
vehicles where required that have reach their operational life. 

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS:

1. Background,

As part of the capital fleet renewal programme, a number of vehicles have reached 
their operational life and require replacement.

The request for approval to procure the grounds maintenance and street cleansing 
vehicles is due to the vehicles failing resulting in poor service delivery implications 
with regard to grounds maintenance and street cleansing services, to the residents of 
the City Council.

It was decided to procure the vehicles via the capital programme as it is the overall   
most cost effective option.

Place Directorate has submitted a capital funding bid covering this expenditure.

2. The Procurement Process

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework reference 

& title, start/ end date

YPO Supply of specialist Vehicles 960

Funding Source Capital Programme

Page 52



3

The tender process was undertaken by utilising the Yorkshire Purchasing 
Organisation Framework Agreement 960, by means of a mini competition for the 
purchase of specialised vehicles.

There were 18 selected companies invited to tender for the grounds maintenance 
and street cleansing vehicles as they fall under the same lot.  The weightings were 
split at 40% quality and 60% price. 

Tender Results and Evaluation 

However, there was only one bid received that could meet our requirements and 
conformed to our specification.  

The purchase cost of each single day caged tipper is £32,508.92 the council require 
7 of these vehicles, totalling £229,500 including logo.  The purchase cost of each 
double cab tipper vehicles is £39,371.18 and the council require 15 of these vehicles 
totalling £595,000 including logo.  The purchase cost of each single day cab caged 
tipper is £32,508.92 the council require 4 of these vehicles totalling £151,500 
including logo.  

3. Social Value 

Improving CSR – Ford Response

Community:

To achieve their goals, they foster long-term relationships with their suppliers through 
active engagement. This helps them communicate their expectations on key issues, 
and confirm that their suppliers have management systems in place to mitigate 
potential risks and ensure continuity of supply. The work is governed by Policy Letter 
24: Ford Code of Human Rights, Basic Working Conditions and Corporate 
Responsibility, and by their Global Terms & Conditions.

Engaging with and investing in communities is more than the right thing to do; it’s 
also smart business. Their global company is only as strong as the local communities 
in which the employees and customers live and work, so it is in their mutual interest 
that they work with communities to make meaningful contributions to improve quality 
of life.  

Additionally, the Ford Training facility in Daventry, Northamptonshire, runs courses 
for 450 Apprentices nationally every year, however these apprentices have to be 
formally employed by a dealership and is not offered to people currently out of work. 
There are instances of local dealerships employing long term unemployed people as 
car valeters, car parking attendants, drivers and even the sales people once they 
have proved that they are willing and able to work independently. 

Page 53



4

By encouraging local dealerships to supply, service, repair and maintain vehicles 
(where practicable), opportunities could arise for employment, as well as ensuring 
that local taxes are being used to sustain local jobs and employment for local 
people.  In terms of the environmental wellbeing, the free of charge options offered 
on commercial vehicles are all designed to reduce CO2 and fuel usage, therefore 
offering the cleanest diesel vehicles they are able to.

Although there is no nationally agreed standard to which all Manufacturers have to 
comply, it is always Ford's intention to facilitate placing local businesses with local 
dealerships, thus ensuring that business taxes are used in the local economy. 
Wherever practicable, local converters and ancillary equipment providers are used 
(although with major conversions this is not always possible). In a few instances 
these relationships have ensured job security, as well as creating jobs for local 
residents.

Reducing Emissions:

They are working towards manufacturing electric Commercial Vehicles in the future.  

With the introduction of the new 2.0 Euro VI ECoBlue Engine , Ford has achieved a 
55% reduction in NOx – emissions compared to previous Euro V Engine emissions. 
Additionally these engines achieve a typical 2% - 4% improvement. 
Acceleration Control is a torque inhibitor which will be fitted to all your vehicles. This 
means a vehicle at 70% laden or less, results in the vehicles driving dynamics as if 
the vehicle was 70% laden. So real world fuel useage is reduced by 4-8% and 
additional savings are made on wear/tear items as the vehicles acceleration is 
retarded. 
Stop/Start technology will reduce emissions as the vehicle will automatically cut the 
engine off under certain conditions whilst idling.
For more information, please follow the link to our latest sustainability report: 
http://corporate.ford.com/microsites/sustainability-report-2015-16/index.html 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Complies with the Carbon reduction policy and EU 
Directives. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
There is a low assessment of risk given that the procurement has taken place via the 
YPO framework and a competitive exercise overseen by city council procurement 
team.  Delaying approval will have significant risk to the delivery of refuse services to
the residents of the City Council

Page 54

http://corporate.ford.com/microsites/sustainability-report-2015-16/index.html


5

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS :Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323
When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) which require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner. 
In addition, the Council is required to comply with the requirements of its own 
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which the award of a contract may be 
subject to legal challenge.  

The Council can comply with the requirements of the Regulations by carrying out its 
own procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant 
procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods, 
works or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have 
complied with the Regulations to the extent that the central purchasing body has). 
The definition of ‘central purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes 
framework agreements for works, goods or services intended for one or more 
contracting authorities, here the YPO.

The proposed award of the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in 
accordance with the YPO framework agreement for the supply of specialist vehicles. 
The YPO arrangement is a fully compliant framework from a legislative perspective 
available for the Council (and other local authorities) to use.

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a 
procurement/evaluation process a number of providers who can meet the service 
requirements of the Council, as and when those services are required. If they are 
required then the Council can call off the goods/services from one or more of the 
providers who have been selected to be on the Framework and this may be through 
any number of ways (usually by way of mini-competition as here) depending on the 
circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s. The procurement procedures set out therefore appear robust and 
compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and public procurement 
legislation.

Page 55



6

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Capital Implications:

Supplied by: Alison Woods, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 1135

Date: 10th March 2020

The purchase of the aforementioned vehicles will be funded from approved general 
unsupported borrowing, as part of the Place Capital Programme, for the 2019/20 
financial year.

Expenditure: F31023

Revenue Implications:

Supplied by: Paul Guest, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 1136

Date: 10th March 2020

There is existing revenue funding provision to support the service and maintenance 
costs of the Grounds Maintenance and Street Cleansing fleet.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Deborah Derbyshire x 6244
The procurement process is included within the report above.  Utilising the YPO 
Framework is compliant with the Procurement Contracts Regulations and the Council 
Contractual Standing Orders

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Terry Dixie x 1046

The purchase of the vehicles complies with Euro 6 which is the latest directive set by 
the European Union to help reduce the level of harmful pollutants produced by new 
vehicles.  The Euro 6 measures apply stricter limits on diesel emissions aiming for 
50% reduction in Nitrogen Oxides produced by new vehicles.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

Page 56



7

CONTACT OFFICER: Terry Dixie TEL NO: 925 1046

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE

TO PROCUREMENT BOARD

ON 25th March 2020

TITLE:  The purchase of 26 tonne and 18 tonne Refuse Collection Vehicles.

RECOMMENDATIONS: That Procurement Board approve the award of the 
Contract for the purchase of 26 tonne and 18 tonne Refuse Collection Vehicles 
as detailed in the table below: -

Detail required Answers

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project Refuse Collection Vehicles 26 tonne and 18 tonne

Name of Successful Contractor Dennis Eagle
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 03794455

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME

Contract Value £981,158 Full Project
Contract Duration One off project

Contract Start Date 
Contract End Date 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A

Who will approve each Extension Period? Choose an item.
Contact Officer (Name & number) Terry Dixie 925 1046

Lead Service Group Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)

Page 59



2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the purchase of 26 tonne refuse 
collection vehicles and 18 tonne refuse collection vehicles.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Approval was agreed under the capital programme to replace refuse collection 
vehicles where required that have reach their operational life. 

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS:

1. Background,

As part of the capital fleet renewal programme, a number of vehicles have reached 
their operational life and require replacement.

The request for approval to procure these refuse vehicles is due to the vehicles 
failing resulting in poor service delivery implications with regard to waste collection 
for the residents of the City Council which is a statutory requirement.

It was decided to procure the vehicles via the capital programme as it is the overall 
most cost effective option.

Place Directorate has submitted a capital funding bid covering this expenditure.

2. The Procurement Process

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework reference 

& title, start/ end date

YPO Supply of specialist Vehicles 960

Funding Source Capital Programme

Page 60



3

The tender process was undertaken by utilising the Yorkshire Purchasing 
Organisation Framework Agreement 960, by means of a mini competition for the 
purchase of specialised vehicles.

There were 19 selected companies for the 26 tonne and 21 selected companies for 
the 18 tonne invited to tender from the framework.  The weightings were split at 40% 
quality and 60% price. This was due to many companies supplying the same 
configuration of vehicles so larger emphasis was placed on the price, as the unit 
costs are so expensive.

Tender Results and Evaluation 

The evaluation panel consisted of the Head of Service for Transport, Technical 
Customer Services Officer from the Vehicle Management Services and a 
Procurement Category Manager from the procurement team.

There were 4 companies that submitted a tender response for the purchase of refuse 
collection vehicles for both 26 tonne and 18 tonne variants.

Summary of the evaluation for 26 tonne refuse collection vehicles:-

Name of Bidder
% Price 
score

Max 60%

% Quality 
score

Max 40%

%Overall 
Score
100%

Price

Dennis Eagle 60.00 35.20 95.20

Provider A 57.77 34.40 92.17

Provider C 59.84 26.40 86.24

Provider D 49.10 28.00 77.10

The purchase cost of each 26 tonne refuse collection vehicle is £165,646, plus 
logo/graphic costs of £1,000.00. Therefore a total vehicle cost of £166,646 each. 
Therefore the total number of vehicles will be 2 which total a cost of £333,292.

Summary of the evaluation for 18 tonne refuse collection vehicles:-

Name of Bidder
% Price 
score

Max 60%

% Quality 
score

Max 40%

%Overall 
Score
100%

Price

Dennis Eagle 58.82 35.20 94.02

Page 61



4

Provider A 57.20 34.40 91.60

Provider C 59.97 26.40 86.37

Provider D 60.00 28.00 88.00

Although the price offered by provider D was the lowest price submitted but the Most 
Economical Advantageous Tender due to quality and price was Dennis Eagle, 
therefore this was the winning contractor.

The purchase cost of each 18 tonne, refuse collection vehicle is £154,622, plus 
logo/graphic costs of £1,000.00. Therefore, a total vehicle cost of £155,622 each. 
Therefore, the total number of vehicles will be 3 which total a cost of £466,866.  

However, the three contractors that were unsuccessful had a caveat within their 
response in relation to potential implicated cost post Brexit of which were undefined 
and therefore deemed a risk to the Authority.

A previous process through the YPO framework was also undertaken for a split 
bodied 18 tonne refuse vehicle and received only one bid from Dennis Eagle, 
therefore a total cost of £180,000 plus logo/grahic costs of £1000 totals £181,000.

3. Social Value 

Local Employment Opportunities: The refuse vehicles are supported by the largest 
aftermarket service in the industry. The 14 DE Service Centres plus maintenance 
Contract Centres across the UK play a key role in this and have a track record of 
recruiting and training new staff, including apprentices.  They currently employ 885 
staff with new roles regularly created in different locations. Their staff profile shows 
longevity of service which is second to none in this industry and they pride 
themselves on providing staff with ample opportunities for career progression. Their 
Manchester Service Centre located only 2.5 miles from our Salford depot employs a 
team of 22 who reside locally within the Manchester region. All vacancies are 
advertised on their website and applicants from Salford could apply for roles.

Delivery Capability: Vacancies advertised on website.

Monitor & Report: Number of placements from Salford city into roles

Apprenticeships: They currently have 29 apprentices completing Apprenticeships, 
particularly in engineering. The shortage of skilled engineers across the UK means 
this number is likely to increase.  Their willingness to take on apprentice engineers in 
their Service Centres and production facilities, and their ability to retain them once 
qualified has enabled them to largely overcome this industry-wide problem. They 
currently employ 2 Apprentices working from their Manchester Service Centre who 
are currently completing their NVQ course including a female trainee. 

Page 62



5

Delivery Capability: 8 hours x 2 days Total 16 training

Monitor & Report: Salford Council Apprentices provided with product awareness 
training

Apprentice Training: They would like to offer a ‘Friday Apprentice Clinic’ to 
Apprentices at Salford Council.  This clinic will be held quarterly and will provide an 
opportunity for Apprentices to have some one-to-one training on our new product by 
a qualified Engineer & Technical Trainer at Salford Council. All training will be agreed 
with ourselves and provided at our chosen depot.   

Work Experience Placements: They would be happy to discuss opportunities for 
students in Manchester for a 1-2 week work experience at their Manchester Service 
Centre/Blackpool & Warwick Production Facility/Other DE Service Centres to provide 
an insight into their operation providing valuable experience and key skills for life. 
The offer to contact Jaspal Saund on email: jaspal.saund@dennis-eagle.co.uk HR 
Department with our work experience requests.

Delivery Capability: 1-2 week placement opportunities.
Monitor & Report: Number of placements from Salford city.

Living Wage Apprentice Training: They would like to offer a 
‘Friday Apprentice Clinic’ to Apprentices at Salford Council.  
This clinic will be held quarterly and will provide an opportunity 
for Apprentices to have some one-to-one training on our new 
product by a qualified Engineer & Technical Trainer at Salford 
Council. All training will be agreed with ourselves and provided  

                                 at our chosen depot.

Employer: Dennis Eagle is proud to hold the Living Wage accreditation and all 
employees including sub-contracted staff are paid the Living Wage across the UK.  
This includes the Salford Living Wage.

Delivery Capability: Confirmation letter from HR Department.

Monitor & Report:  Confirmation letter from HR Department.

Charities:  Both staff and the company itself support charities with roots in their local 
communities.  Here are a few examples of our charity work in action:

Voluntary Education Contribution

Page 63

mailto:jaspal.saund@dennis-eagle.co.uk


6

Skips Educational ‘Dennis to the Rescue’ Books for Schools: They work closely 
with local authorities to provide outstanding, free educational resources and school 
lesson plans in waste and recycling.  A strong driver in their Social Value principles 
has been to support a number of primary schools with the provision of their 
imaginative and innovative ‘Dennis the Dustcart’ books. Their award-winning ‘Dennis 
the Dustcart’ puzzle books and associated resources, such as school lesson plans, 
have been hugely successful in delivering councils’ specific recycling messages. The 
primary objective of the book is to change the recycling behaviour of families by 
engaging with primary school children and through them, their parents. This is often 
tied in with the council’s own recycling initiatives. 
Delivery Capability: Provision of books for local primary schools in Salford..

Monitor & Report: Number of schools who complete the sustainable schools 
programme guided by your waste education teams.

Dennis to the Rescue Mobile 
Classroom: In conjunction with 
the above, they will arrange for 
schools of the poster 
competition winners to receive a 
visit from the Dennis to the 
Rescue mobile classroom and 
invite parents to and invite 
parents to celebrate. 
The mobile classroom is 
equipped with:
• Side and rear stairs for safe 
access.
• 60” visual monitors with sound 

on the inside and outside.
2x bench seats to accommodate 10/12 people.

Page 64



7

2x whiteboards & under-seat storage.

Work-Inspiration 11-18 year olds: They have participated and supported local 
schools with projects such as ‘Engineers of Tomorrow’ STEM events allowing 
students to be inspired around careers and job prospects available to them.  They 
have also supported local schools with projects such as ‘Work Inspiration Week’ 
providing awareness to students around careers and job prospects available. This 
has included a presentation and the opportunity for students to interview some of 
their employees working in Engineering, Production and Sales.  Students try to guess 
the roles of their employees using closed questions.  It’s a fun activity which helps 
engage and inspire youngsters about different roles that people do in the world of 
work.

Delivery Capability: Discussion with Waste Education Officer would be required to 
impact on the statement below..
Environment: The aim is to help the health and well-being of people in the local 
communities by minimising their impact on the environment.

Their e-Collect model is a 100% electric vehicle 
which will go into production in 2020 (Q3) and is a 
culmination of their vast experience in the waste 
industry. With zero emissions and 100% electric, the 
chassis, body, bin lift and telematics technologies 
makes it ideal for use on urban waste collection 
rounds and particularly in Low Emission Zones (LEZs) 
and Clean air Zones (CAZs) and areas particularly 

sensitive to pollution.  The Development team based in Warwick would be happy to 
visit Salford Council or a local college and provide a presentation on the new 
innovations and methods of collections available in the near future.
  
Delivery Capability: Discussion with Fleet Transport team/Waste Education Officer 
would be required.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Complies with the Carbon reduction policy and EU 
Directives. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
There is a low assessment of risk given that the procurement has taken place via the 
YPO framework and a competitive exercise overseen by city council procurement 
team.  Delaying approval will have significant risk to the delivery of refuse services to
the residents of the City Council

Page 65



8

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 
When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) which require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner. 
In addition, the Council is required to comply with the requirements of its own 
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which the award of a contract may be 
subject to legal challenge.  

The Council can comply with the requirements of the Regulations by carrying out its 
own procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant 
procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods, 
works or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have 
complied with the Regulations to the extent that the central purchasing body has). 
The definition of ‘central purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes 
framework agreements for works, goods or services intended for one or more 
contracting authorities, here the YPO.

The proposed award of the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in 
accordance with the YPO framework agreement for the supply of specialist vehicles. 
The YPO arrangement is a fully compliant framework from a legislative perspective 
available for the Council (and other local authorities) to use.

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a 
procurement/evaluation process a number of providers who can meet the service 
requirements of the Council, as and when those services are required. If they are 
required then the Council can call off the goods/services from one or more of the 
providers who have been selected to be on the Framework and this may be through 
any number of ways (usually by way of mini-competition as here) depending on the 
circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s. The procurement procedures set out therefore appear robust and 
compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and the Regulations.

Page 66



9

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Capital Implications:

Supplied by: Alison Woods, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 1135

Date: 10th March 2020

The purchase of the aforementioned vehicles will be funded from approved general 
unsupported borrowing, as part of the Place Capital Programme, for the 2019/20 
financial year.

Expenditure: F31023

Revenue Implications

Supplied by: Paul Guest, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 1136

Date: 10th March 2020

There is existing revenue funding provision to support the service and maintenance 
costs of the Refuse Collection fleet

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Deborah Derbyshire x 6244
The procurement process is included within the report above.  Utilising the YPO 
Framework is compliant with the Procurement Contracts Regulations and the Council 
Contractual Standing Orders

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Terry Dixie x 1046

The purchase of the vehicles complies with Euro 6 which is the latest directive set by 
the European Union to help reduce the level of harmful pollutants produced by new 
vehicles.  The Euro 6 measures apply stricter limits on diesel emissions aiming for 
50% reduction in Nitrogen Oxides produced by new vehicles.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

Page 67



10

CONTACT OFFICER: Terry Dixie TEL NO: 925 1046

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All

Page 68



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE

TO PROCUREMENT BOARD

ON WEDNESDAY 25TH MARCH 2020.

TITLE:  The purchase of 3 large sweepers and 8 mini sweepers.

RECOMMENDATIONS: That Procurement Board approve the purchase 
of 3 Large Sweepers and 8 Mini Sweepers as detailed in the tables 
below: -

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project 3 x Large Sweepers

Name of Successful Contractor Scarab
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 04988960

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME

Contract Value £351, 402 Full Project
Contract Duration One off project

Contract Start Date 
Contract End Date 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A

Who will approve each Extension Period? Choose an item.
Contact Officer (Name & number) Terry Dixie 925 1046

Lead Service Group Place

Page 69



2

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework reference 

& title, start/ end date

YPO Supply of specialist Vehicles 960

Funding Source Capital Programme

Detail required Answers
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project 8 x Mini Sweepers

Name of Successful Contractor Hako
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 01414225

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME

Contract Value £664,868.80 Full Project
Contract Duration One off project

Contract Start Date 
Contract End Date 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A

Who will approve each Extension Period? Choose an item.
Contact Officer (Name & number) Terry Dixie 925 1046

Lead Service Group Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)

Framework Call-off (Mini Competition)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework reference 

& title, start/ end date

YPO Supply of specialist Vehicles 960

Funding Source Capital Programme

Page 70



3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the purchase of 3 Large Sweepers 
and 8 Mini Sweepers as details above.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Approval was agreed under the capital programme to replace the current fleet of 
large and small mechanical sweepers. 

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS:

1. Background,

As part of the capital fleet renewal programme, a number of vehicles have reached 
their operational life and require replacement.

The request for approval to procure these large and small sweepers is due to the 
vehicles failing resulting in poor service delivery implications with regard to street 
cleansing for the residents of the City Council.

It was decided to procure the vehicles via the capital programme as it is the overall 
most cost effective option.

Place Directorate has submitted a capital funding bid covering this expenditure.

2. The Procurement Process

The tender process was undertaken by utilising the Yorkshire Purchasing  
Organisation Framework Agreement 960, by means of a mini competition for the 
purchase of specialised vehicles.

There were 18 selected companies for the sweeper vehicles invited to tender from 
the framework.  The weightings were split at 40% quality and 60% price. This was 
due to many companies supplying the same configuration of vehicles so larger 
emphasis was placed on the price, as the unit costs are so expensive.

Page 71



4

Tender Results and Evaluation 

The evaluation panel consisted of the Head of Service for Transport, Technical 
Customer Services Officer from the Vehicle Management Services and a 
Procurement Category Manager from the procurement team.

For the large sweepers we received only 2 submissions.

Summary of the evaluation for the large sweepers:-

Name of Bidder
% Price 
score

Max 60%

% Quality 
score

Max 40%

%Overall 
Score
100%

Scarab 60.00 32.00 92.00

Provider A 57.05 23.20 80.25

The purchase cost of each Large Sweeper vehicle is £116,134 plus logo/graphic 
costs of £1,000.00. Therefore, a total vehicle cost of £117,134 each. Therefore, the 
total cost of £351,402.

Summary of the evaluation for the Small Mechanical Sweepers vehicles:-

Name of Bidder
% Price 
score

Max 60%

% Quality 
score

Max 40%

%Overall 
Score
100%

Hako 60.00 27.20 87.20

Provider A (did not 
conform to 

specification)

Following on from the evaluation and seeking further clarification against provider A, 
the vehicle did not meet the specification within the tender documents therefore this 
this was deemed as a non-compliant bid.

The purchase cost of each small mechanical sweeper is £82,108.60, plus 
logo/graphic costs of £1,000.00. Therefore, a total vehicle cost of £83,108.60 each. 
Therefore, the total number of vehicles will be 8 which total a cost of £664,868.80.

Page 72



5

3. Social Value – Scarab (Large Sweepers)

Scarab is constantly working on new products and features and would like to work 
with Salford to develop and understand how these can be improved, and the benefits 
within the contract performance.

Scarab Sweepers Ltd, aim to support the local Salford economy by increasing 
contract expenditure in the local supply chains during the supply and maintenance of 
the contract with the following commitments: -

 Replacement parts to be sourced from the local area.
 Recruitment service engineers, local to Salford as and when contracts require.
 Hospitality, using local conference centres, for Scarab Sales, Service 

meetings and customer Review meetings.

Scarab will offer Salford City Council engineers the opportunity to attend the Scarab 
headquarters for technical familiarisation training for 10 days across 2 years. This 
could be used in conjunction with a Salford Apprentice Scheme for both operators 
and technicians. Alternatively, this could be used in conjunction with local schools 
and colleges as part of their further education. Scarab is unique in having a full 
manufacturing site based in the UK. Within their manufacturing facility they take flat 
metal (stainless steel), cut, fold and fabricate this into Hoppers for chassis mounted 
vehicles. Then have fully shot blast and paint facilities prior to the mounting of the 
hoppers onto the donor vehicles. All fabrication is conducted at Scarab HQ and 
technical engineers are based on site to further increase the customer’s experience. 
All hydraulic hoses whether piped or not are made and installed on site too. Within 
the manufacturing plant is a complete design team and department – all the 
machines are pre-designed prior to construction, including the launch of any new 
products. Also they are unique in having Electronic Designers who make and control 
all of Scarabs software and Canbus System.  The Manufacturing Plant would make 
an excellent educational route for any student with the benefit of being in the UK.
They also offer the chance for Salford College students to attend the Scarab 
manufacturing plant to assist with the learning and knowledge of design, hydraulics, 
fabrication and mechanical courses. 
Working with our council to advertise and support and contribute to a litter picking 
event.
Getting the school within the Salford area to name a sweeper and design the livery 
for the machines. 
Scarab would also support an apprentice through scarab product.

Scarab will host and fund a number of open days which will enable all the Fleet 
Managers from the local authorities to discuss the contract performance and efficient 
working methods to reduce their carbon footprints. They would be delighted to share  
future plans and help Salford to make informed choices for the future based on fuel 
type and the infrastructure involved in the decision making process.

Page 73



6

Social Value – Hako (Small Sweepers)

Hako Machines Ltd is committed to delivering social value and economic initiatives, 
in line with the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012, to improve the service 
offering and to enhance the lives and well-being of local people and communities. 
Hako’s Directors and employees consistently dedicate time, skills, knowledge
and enthusiasms for the benefit of people within the community. 

If successful within this tender process, they would welcome suggestions from 
Salford City Council on how they can achieve specific, Salford based social value if 
we have any projects that require assistance. We are currently in discussions with a 
potential partner to plant trees into the environment for every machine sold. 
Potentially these trees could be planted within the Salford area should we highlight 
areas this could be implemented in. 

Through the below examples, they have achieved corporate social 
responsibility/social value within their community/district:

Apprenticeships
They have developed the Hako Engineering Apprenticeship and are currently in 
discussions with Milton Keynes College and Northampton College, to provide a pool 
of potential candidates for their programme. They have started to develop an 
apprenticeship programme to encourage young people to learn a trade skill direct 
from school with prospects to progress within their company. Their employees have 
demonstrated when entering entry level roles, they can progress within the business 
into areas they desire to do so, leading to a well-rounded, knowledgeable workforce. 
Apprentices will have the opportunity to learn various trades including fabrication and 
welding, vehicle electrics and vehicle mechanics. 

Living Wage Accreditation 
Hako believe in fair working practices and pay for all employees. Last year, Hako 
became a Living Wage Accredited Employer, a reflection of their vision that all 
employees deserve to be paid fairly. They believe this is important as paying the 
Living Wage can make a positive contribution to families and the local area. 

Charity Work
Established 10 years ago, their Charity Committee is responsible for all of their 
charity work. The Committee consists of key individuals within their business who 
meet on a monthly basis to discuss fundraising ideas. These ideas are sent to all 
employees who then democratically vote on which charity they wish to support. In 
2018, they chose to support the mental health charity Mind. To date, over £2000 has 
been raised for the charity via organised events and Raffles.

Charities they have supported in the past include The Joshua Tarrant Trust, Acorns
Hospice and Mind. 

Support Of Local School
Hako support their local school, Crick Primary School, every year by donating 
cleaning equipment for raffle prizes. The donation helps the school generate funds 

Page 74



7

for the school, to use for various projects, enhancing the local school for children in 
the community.

Responsibility to employees
As an employer to 65 employees currently, they believe they have a duty of care to 
staff both inside and outside of work. They understand personal issues can impact 
their working lives and vice versa, so for this reason, they have two mental first 
aiders on site that can be accessed by all employees. In addition to this, they also 
provide an onsite health and wellbeing coach once a month who is accessible for all 
employees at our Crick Headquarters. They find this helps employees not only find 
answers to any mental health concerns they may have, but can also promote a 
healthy lifestyle amongst employees.

Local employment
Across the UK they have a sales and engineering team that both live and work within 
their geographical areas of responsibility. This is very beneficial for day to day 
running as it helps reduce unnecessarily long travel, all of which is planned 
efficiently. A recent review of their employee locations found that 50% of their UK 
wide workforce lived within 25 miles of the head office.

By sourcing local labour, they create a positive economic impact, keeping wealth, 
skills and expertise in the area, benefiting local communities and fuelling future 
economic growth. Local labour reduces strain on local infrastructure and reduced 
CO2 emissions through less travel time. Where possible, they encourage car sharing 
amongst employees to help limit the amount carbon emissions and thus CO2 in the 
atmosphere.

Monitoring Contributions
The following table identifies outcomes and the associated indicators/measures and 
methods for tracking the ‘amount’ of social value delivered (not exhaustive):

 Outcome Indicators/Measures Method

Create jobs for local 
people

Number of new jobs Individuals on 
payroll

Apprentices/work 
placements/experien
ces

Number offered Evidence of training, 
supervision/support 
and payroll 
(apprenticeships)

Economic

Skills development Number of training 
courses 
completed/qualification
s gained 

Training matrix, 
certificates

Page 75



8

Opportunities for 
engagement 
including work 
experiences, school 
talks, etc. 

Number of activities 
delivered/attended

Records of 
attendance, 
feedback from 
sessions

Sponsorship/fundrais
ing

Monies raised Tracking 
donations/fundraisin
g activity 

Social

Inclusivity of our 
service

Positive feedback from 
staff/stakeholders 

Equality monitoring 
questionnaires 

They will review the performance annually in partnership with Salford. They will seek 
the active involvement of staff, clients and others to gain suggestions on how they 
might improve the offering and contribution to social value, including 
improving/increasing the offer as per the above. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Complies with the Carbon reduction policy and EU 
Directives. 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
There is a low assessment of risk given that the procurement has taken place via the 
YPO framework and a competitive exercise overseen by city council procurement 
team.  Delaying approval will have significant risk to the delivery of cleansing 
services to the residents of the City Council

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323
When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) which require that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner. 
In addition, the Council is required to comply with the requirements of its own 
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which the award of a contract may be 
subject to legal challenge.  

Page 76



9

The Council can comply with the requirements of the Regulations by carrying out its 
own procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant 
procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods, 
works or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have 
complied with the Regulations to the extent that the central purchasing body has). 
The definition of ‘central purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes 
framework agreements for works, goods or services intended for one or more 
contracting authorities, here the YPO.

The proposed award of the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in 
accordance with the YPO framework agreement for the supply of specialist vehicles. 
The YPO arrangement is a fully compliant framework from a legislative perspective 
available for the Council (and other local authorities) to use.

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a 
procurement/evaluation process a number of providers who can meet the service 
requirements of the Council, as and when those services are required. If they are 
required then the Council can call off the goods/services from one or more of the 
providers who have been selected to be on the Framework and this may be through 
any number of ways (usually by way of mini-competition as here) depending on the 
circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s. The procurement procedures set out therefore appear robust and 
compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and public procurement 
legislation.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Capital Implications:

Supplied by: Alison Woods, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 1135

Date: 10th March 2020

The purchase of the aforementioned vehicles will be funded from approved general 
unsupported borrowing, as part of the Place Capital Programme, for the 2019/20 
financial year.

Expenditure: F31023

Revenue Implications

Supplied by: Paul Guest, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 1136

Date: 10th March 2020

There is existing revenue funding provision to support the service and maintenance 
costs of the Large and Mini Sweeper fleet.

Page 77



10

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Deborah Derbyshire x 6244
The procurement process is included within the report above.  Utilising the YPO 
Framework is compliant with the Procurement Contracts Regulations and the Council 
Contractual Standing Orders

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Terry Dixie x 1046

 The purchase of the vehicles complies with Euro 6 requirements which is the latest 
directive set by the European Union to help reduce the level of harmful pollutants and 
noise levels produced by new vehicles.  The Euro 6 measures apply stricter limits on 
diesel emissions aiming for 50% reduction in Nitrogen Oxides produced by new 
vehicles.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Terry Dixie TEL NO: 925 1046

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All

Page 78


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2020
	5a Request to go out to Tender - Islington Mill
	5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Supply, Installation and Maintenance of Multi-Functional Printers and Print Centre Equipment
	5c Request for Approval - Contract Award - Arboricultural Services
	5d Request for Approval - Contract Award - Water System Risk Assessments and Water Hygiene Monitoring Services
	5e Request for Approval - Appointment of Contractor - Council New build Housing
	5f Request for Approval - Contract Award - Vehicle Replacement Programme
	05(f) 2 - Grounds Maintenance and Street Cleansing Vehicles YPO framework
	05(f) 3 - Refuse Collection YPO Framework
	05(f) 4 - Sweepers award from YPO framework


